
ANNUAL REPORT
2013/2014





GAUTENG FUNDING AGENCY  2013 / 2014 1

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

CONTENTS

SECTION 1: Executive Summary
  Foreword by Member of the Executive Council ......................................  04 
  Submission of the Annual Report by the Accounting Offi cer....................  05

SECTION 2: Organisational Overview 
 2.1 Mandate of the GFA ............................................................................  08
 2.2 Vision ................................................................................................. 08
 2.3 Mission .............................................................................................. 08
 2.4 Values ................................................................................................ 08
 2.5 Good Governnance and Legislative Responsibilities .............................. 08
 2.6 Strengthening Accountability ................................................................ 08
  2.6.1 GFA Stakeholders .................................................................... 08
  2.6.2 Monitoring Mechanisms and Implementation of the Mandate ..... 09
 2.7 GFA Services ...................................................................................... 09
 2.8 Organisation of the GFA ..................................................................... 10

SECTION 3:  Financial Performance ............................................................... ......... 11
 3.1 Annual Financial Statements ................................................................ 12
 3.2 Report of the Accounting Offi cer .......................................................... 13
 3.3 Report of the Auditor-General .............................................................. 19
 3.4 Financial Statements ........................................................................... 22
 3.5 Report of the Audit Committee ............................................................. 58

SECTION 4: Annual Performance Report ................................................................. 61
  Performance against Targets ................................................................ 62

SECTION 5: Outlook for the Coming Year ............................................................... 69
  Key Deliverables 2014/15 ................................................................... 70

“The GFA provides a one stop service to convert a project concept to a bankable proposal.
In collaboration with project owners and Provincial Treasury, the GFA will support public 
institutions in Gauteng Province to perform project preparation and facilitate innovative 

fi nancing solutions.”
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In conclusion, I present the 2013/14 Annual Report of 
Gauteng Funding Agency, which details the performance 
of the GFA and audited Annual Financial Statements as at 
31 March 2014. 

_______________________________
B. Creecy, MEC
MEC for Finance, Gauteng Province

FOREWORD BY MEMBER OF THE EXECUTIVE COUNCIL 

In 2009 the Gauteng provincial Executive Council (“EXCO”) 
approved the establishment of the Gauteng Funding Agency (“GFA”) 
with the mandate to raise alternative funding for key multi-year 
capital projects from private sources and augment the funds  
available from the Provincial Revenue Fund.  

Over the past five years the GFA has developed project 
feasibility studies and recommended funding options for each  
project. So far, two projects have been funded and are 
currently in implementation stage. With regard to the 
registration of the GFA as the government component 
the Ministers of Public Service and Administration and 
Finance have concurred that the GFA can be established 
as a government component. The process of publication 
of the notice in the Government Gazette by the President 
will follow in due course to signify the legal establishment 
of the Government Component.

Going forward the GFA will work with the Provincial Treasury 
to establish a central point for coordination of infrastructure 
projects. The GFA will conduct pre-feasibility studies on 
selected projects to determine the viability and funding 
options. The GFA will also offer a full bouquet of services 
to the project-owners by assisting with procurement and 
contracting. 
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SUBMISSION OF THE ANNUAL REPORT BY THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER

The Gauteng Funding Agency’s Accounting Officer in compliance with Section 40 of the Public Finance Management Act, 
Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 1999) hereby submits the Annual Report for the the  2013/14 financial year to 
the Gauteng Provincial Legislature, the Gauteng Treasury and the public. 
 
For the purpose of a concise account of GFA’s performance in 2013/14 financial year the annual report is divided into 
sections. Section 1: Executive Summary provides a backward-looking review of the GFA in the past term . Section 2: The 
Organisational Overview outlines the area of responsibility of the GFA and it’s scope which determines the existence of 
the institution and its operations. Section 3: Financial Performance presents the annual financial statements of GFA for the 
financial year 2013/14. The section covers the Report of the Accounting Officer, the Report of the Auditor General, the 
Report of the Audit Committee, the Statement of Income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Cashflow Statement, the 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Notes to the Annual Financial Statements.

Section 4: Annual Performance Report provides information on performance of each business unit against targets. This 
section reports on the targets achieved as planned in the annual performance plan of 2013/14. The section also explains 
the deviations that might have occurred and the reasons for those deviations. 

Finally, Section 5: Outlook for the coming year provides the key focus of 2014/15 financial year. 

______________________
O. Seabi
Head of GFA
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SECTION 2: ORGANISATIONAL OVERVIEW
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SECTION 2: ORGANISATIONAL OVERVIEW

The end beneficiaries, i.e. the people, communities and 
social institutions of the province will benefit from:
•	 Improved service delivery through better  

infrastructure
•	 Service excellence 
•	 Social responsibility
•	 Environmental responsibility

 
2.5 Good governance and  
 legislative responsibilities
 
The GFA promotes good governnance practices and it is 
guided by a plethora of relevant legislation and policies 
such as but not limited to the following:
•	 Public Finance Management Act, 1999
•	 Treasury Regulations
•	 Promotion of Access to Information Act, 2000
•	 Promotion of Administrative Justice Act, 2000
•	 Labour Relations Act, 1995
•	 Public Service Amendment Act, 2007
•	 Skills Development Act, 1998
•	 Batho Pele Policy
•	 Occupational Health and Safety Policy, 2003

2.6 Strengthening Accountability

2.6.1 GFA Stakeholders

In its daily operations the GFA interacts with a number of 
stakeholders who play a role in one way or the other on 
the business of the organisation. Table below outlines the 
various stakeolders of the GFA:

2.1 Mandate of the GFA

The Gauteng Provincial Government recognised that 
infrastructure demands in the province cannot be met 
through existing capex budgets alone, and that an  
aggressive approach would be required to accelerate 
the development of economic and social infrastructure. 
It was on this basis that in 2009 the EXCO took a 
resolution to establish the GFA. The GFA was mandated 
by EXCO to support and coordinate alternative funding  
strategies for key multi-year capital projects.
The GFA is registered as a trading entity of the Gauteng Provincial 
Treasury (“GPT”) in terms of Treasury Regulation19.4.1. 
Its main objective is to develop infrastructure projects from 
project ideas to bankable state and facilitate Gauteng GPG’s  
efforts to raise alternative funding to finance these projects.

2.2 Vision 

The GFA aspires to be a centre of excellence in socio 
economic infrastructure project development and 
promotion to enhance shared growth in Gauteng Province. 

2.3 Mission 

The Gauteng Funding Agency serves all public institutions in 
Gauteng province by supporting key infrastructure projects 
and ensuring their successful execution through partnerships 
and innovative financing solutions. 

2.4 Values 
 
In its interaction with its primary clients, the GFA will 

exhibit the following values:
•	 Integrity
•	 Efficiency
•	 Professionalism

 
The Gauteng Provincial Government and financial partners 
of the GFA should experience the organisation as:
•	 Solution-driven
•	 Innovative
•	 Financially accountable and responsible
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Table 1: Stakeholder List
Stakeholders Relationship

Provincial Sector Departments Clients and project owners

Municipalities Clients and project owners

Provincial Treasury Partner

Legislature/ Portfolio Committee Ensures oversight 

Development Finance Institutions and Foundations 
Foundations

Potential funders

Private Sector e.g private banks, financiers, Potential investors

Construction industry Project implementors 

2.6.2 Monitoring Mechanisms and Implementation of the Mandate 

The GFA’s Strategic Planning and Monitoring Performance Information Framework outlines the mechanisms and processes 
for monitoring the implementation of the GFA strategy, monitoring the performance indicators and achievement of planned 
targets. 
The table below outlines levels of monitoring the performance implementation of the GFA and its performance.

Table 2: Levels of performance monitoring
Level Monitor Mechanism

MEC Legislature/ Portfolio Committee Strategic plan, Annual Performance Plan, 
Quarterly Reports, Annual 
Report

Head of the GFA MEC Strategic plan, Annual Performance 
Plan, Budget, In-year Monitoring (IYM)
Quarterly Reports, Annual Report

Business Unit Heads Head of the GFA Operational plans, budget, monthly 
reports, quaterly reports, annual 
reports

 
2.7 GFA Services

The type of service offered by the GFA to its clients is project development support. The primary clients or beneficiaries of 
of GFA’s services are GPG departments and their agencies and municipalities. Over the past years the clients have been:
•	 Department of Economic Development
•	 Department of Infrastructure Development
•	 Department of Roads and Transport
•	 Department of Sports, Recreation, Arts & Culture
•	 Department of Health
•	 Department of Education
•	 Gauteng Growth and Development Agency
•	 West Rand District Municipality
•	 Sedibeng District Municipality 

The GFA supports these client institutions in preparing projecs to a point where they can be funded and implemented. 
For GFA to deliver an efficient and effective service to its clients it has developed a Service Delivery Model for the Project 
Preparation Facility (“PPF”). The service delivery model explains the following:
•	 The process flow or steps of project preparation;
•	 The guidelines for project prepapration;
•	 The inputs, outputs, detailed activities and responsibilities. 



 

GAUTENG FUNDING AGENCY  2013 / 2014 10

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

2.8 Organisation of the GFA

The GFA is organised in Business Units which are responsible for carrying out the mandate and the strategic goals of the 
organisation. The GFA has five Business Units that are managed by the senior managers or Heads of Business Units. All 
Heads of Business Units report to the Head of the GFA who in turn is accountable to the MEC.
The diagram below illustrates the GFA’s and it illustrates the reporting lines from the MEC down to the Business Unit heads.

STRUCTURE OF GFA

Head of GFA (CEO)

Member of the Executive Council (MEC)

Head:
Communication, 

Marketing & 
Stakeholder 

Management

Head:
Strategy, 

Monitoring 
& Evaluation

Head:
Project 

Development & 
Finance

Head:
Financial

Management 
(CFO)

Head:
Corporate 
Services
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SECTION 3: FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
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3.2 REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
 31 MARCH 2014

3.1 Introduction 

The purpose of this report is to highlight the performance 
of the GFA for the reporting period of 01 April 2013 to 31 
March 2014 in compliance with Section 40 of the Public 
Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by 
Act 29 of 1999) and specific financial matters of the period 
under review. 

3.2 Report Of The Accounting Officer 

•	 General Review of the State of Financial Affairs 

The important policy decision and strategic issue facing 
the GFA was its reporting basis which changed from South 
African Statement of Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practices (“GAAP”) to South African Standards of Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practice (“GRAP”). The only area 
of significant change due to this conversion was property, 
plant and equipment. All assets’ useful lives were revealed 
and accounted for according to Directive 2.

•	 Significant event that took place in 2013/14 
Financial Year

The significant event that took place in 2013/14 financial 
year is the Gauteng Funding Fair (“GFF”). The GFF is an 
event aimed at facilitating contact between project promoters 
or owners and business development bodies, venture 
capital, private equity investors as well as debt funders.  
The inaugural GFF was held on 25-26 March 2014, at 
the Emperors Palace, Ekurhuleni. The event was open to 
Corporates requiring funding greater than R20 million for 
their projects. The plan is to hold the infrastructure and 
SMME events in the current financial year. The GFA’s biggest 
expenditure on the GFF was R750 000,00 on the venue.

3.3 Major projects undertaken in   
 2013/14 Financial Year  

The GFA’s project pipeline in 2013/14 was made up of 14 
projects as listed in the table below:

No Project Name Owner Department

1 West Rand Logistics Hub Department of Economic Development 

2 Gauteng Smart City Department of Economic Development

3 Sedibeng & West Rand Waste to Energy Project Department of Economic Development

4 Tshwane Innovation Hub (TIH): Enterprise Building (EB3) Department of Economic Development

5 Tshwane Innovation Hub (TIH): Enterprise Building (EB2) Department of Economic Development

6 Jewellery Manufacturing Precinct Department of Economic Development

7 Gauteng Green Energy Project Department of Infrastructure Development

8 Kopanong Precinct Project Department of Infrastructure Development 

9 William Nicol Road Project Department of Roads and Transport

10 Gauteng Schools Programme Department of Education

11 Gauteng Hospital Revitalisation Programme Department of Health

12 Archive and Libraries Project Department of Sports, Recreation, Arts and Cuture

13 West Rand Integrated Airport West Rand District Municipality

14 Gauteng Land Development Fund Gauteng Funding Agency

The projects are at different stages and the diagram below illustrates a summary overview of the status of the 14 projects 
by end of March 2014:
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Figure: Overview of project status by 2013/14

The diagram indicates GFA’s strength in project development whereby more projects have been developed and two of 
which have secured funding and are at implementation/ construction stage. The projects are, the William Nicol Road 
project which was funded via a mix of  on-balance sheet and private finance and the Archive and Libraries project is fully 
funded on-balance sheet. Most projects are at post feasibility phase where various processes are being undertaken to either 
prepare the terms of agreements, prepare PPP registration and test the open market through tender process. 
The GFA’s project pipeline in 2013/14 was a “mix-bag” of social and economic projects across different sector as  
illustrated in the diagram below: 

Figure: Socio-economic split of the GFA Project Pipeline

 
The economic project account for the largest share of the project pipeline and this is consistent with the GFA’s strategy 
because such projects have a better chance of attracting private funding on their own standing.
 
The figure below illustrates the sector and value of the GFA’s projects. The total value of the projects is estimated at  
R23 billion. 

  

29% 

57% 

14% 

Development Phase

Post Feasibility Phase

Implementation Phase

 

72%  

28%  
Economic Projects

Social Projects
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Figure: Sector & Value Split

The above illustration indicates that social projects (education and health) account for the large share of the value although 
the economic projects account the most projects.

Spending Trends 

The appropriated budget for 2013/14 was R50 million. GFA’s expenditure is in line with the plans in the Annual Performance 
Plan. 
 
GFA’s biggest expenditure in 2013/14 financial year was on project development, which is the core function and responsibility 
of the entity. 
 
Under-expenditure was experienced on compensation of employees mainly due to posts that were not filled. The protracted 
process of promulgating the government component affected the filling of posts. There was also underspending due to 
Sedibeng and West Rand Waste to Energy project and the West Rand Regional Airport project. This underspending did not 
have a negative impact on the performance of the Unit. The projects will be completed in 2014/15.
The total amount spent for the 2013/14 reporting period amounted to R47,153 million of which the breakdown is as follows:
•	 Office of the CEO = R3, 784 million
•	 Finance = R678 000
•	 Project Finance = R20,753 million
•	 Administration = R20,477 million
•	 Stakeholder Management = R1,461 million
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The percentage expenditure breakdown for 2013/14 financial year is depicted in the chart below:

3.4 Services Rendered by the GFA 

The key service rendered by the GFA on behalf of client departments is project development and finance structuring. This 
is a generic process that the GFA undertakes to sufficiently illustrate the feasibility and bankability of the projects. There 
are typical stages a project passes through before reaching a point at which the feasibility has been sufficiently determined 
and funding agreed upon and released. The complete developed projects contain amongst other things the following:
•	 Legal and regulatory reviews or Due Diligence,
•	 Needs and market analysis,
•	 Risk analysis,
•	 Funding option model,
•	 Operational model,
•	 Procurement plan,
•	 Stakeholder analysis,
•	 Structuring of the transaction and institutional arrangements, 
•	 Environmental, economic and social impact
•	 Term sheet
•	 Loan contract
•	 Arranging

3.5 Capacity Constraints  

There are capacity constraints in critical areas of the GFA’s business such as project finance. Skills such as financial 
structuring, transaction advice and capital raising are lacking. The impact of such constraints is largely on conclusion of 
the financial close of the projects.

The marketing and stakeholder management capacity also need to be augmented. The impact of this constrain was 
mostly on engagement with the role players particularly the private sector. Government can test its proposals, ideas and 
opportunities to the private sector.  There is also a need to break negative perceptions and foster a common understanding 
and sustainable relations with the private sector.
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3.6 Corporate Governance Arrangements  

•	 Risk management 
 
The GFA reviewed the Risk Management Strategy and Plan. During this process, GFA identified the risks associated with the 
organisation for 2013/14 and developed mitigation plans. The top 7 risks were identified and action plan was developed. 
All plans were incorporated into the Gauteng Provincial Treasury’s Risk Management Monitoring Plan.
 
As a trading entity of the Gauteng Provincial Treasury, the GFA take part in the processes of the department’s internal 
audit and audit committee. 

•	 Policies  

The GFA has adopted the department’s policies and procedures related to fraud prevention, human resources management, 
delegations, code of conduct, safety, health and environmental issues. 

3.7 Asset Management  

All assets have been captured in the asset register in compliance to GRAP.

3.8 Events after the Reporting Date 

The event after the report date that have an impact is the change in the executive authority of the department because of 
the new term of government that is ushered in. There might be a change in the strategy of the department as well as the 
priorities of government. This may necessitate adjustments in the strategy and plans of the GFA.

3.9 New/ Proposed Activities 

The following new activities are proposed:
•	 The GFA will actively engage suitable role players in the market on specific projects before going to the market in 

order to solicit buy in or invigorate interest.
•	 The GFA will provide full bouquet of services to the owner departments from project definition to implementation. 

This “cradle to the grave” service will result to new activities for the GFA. 

3.10 Information on Predetermined Objectives
 
The GFA has a Strategic Planning and Performance Information Management Framework. The framework outlines the 
GFA’s strategic planning process,  the performance information management process that is adopted to ensure that the 
predetermined objectives are achived. 
   
3.11 SCOPA Resolutions

There were no SCOPA resolutions related to the GFA for 2012/13 financial year that need to be followed up and those 
relating to the previous financial years have been addressed.
 
3.12 Interim Financial Statements
 
The Audit Committee and Accounting Services have reviewed the Quarter 1 to 3 interim financial statements and no 
material findings were reported.
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3.13 Other

The other material circumstances which may have an effect but not addressed elsewhere in this report relate to organizational 
development and human resources.

a) Organisational Development and Human Resources

•	 Staff Establishment:
 º Total Number of posts approved: 30
 º Number of posts filled: 18
 º Number of posts vacant: 12
 º Vacancy rate: 40%

 
Employment Equity:

Gender Category African Coloured White Indian Total

Male 6 3 0 0 9

Female 6 2 1 0 9

TOTAL 12 5 0 0 18

Occupational 

Categories

Male 

African

Male  

Coloured 

Male 

Indian 

Male 

White

Female 

African

Female 

Coloured 

Female 

Indian 

Female 

White

PWD Total

Senior 

Managers (SMS) 4 1 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 7

Professionals 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Middle  

Managers (MMS) 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 3

Administrative 

related 1 1 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 5

General  

Assistants 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 2

TOTAL 6 3 0 0 6 2 0 1 0 18

*PWD – People with Disabilities

b) Performance Management:

All GFA staff signed their performance contracts at the start of the 2013/14 financial year. The performance evaluations 
are conducted bi-annually. The final performance is conducted at the end of the financial year in order to match the 
individual’s performance against organisational performance. 

c) Staff Development:

The Training and Development Plan was developed and it is aligned to the individual performance contracts. 

APPROVAL

The Annual Financial Statements set out on page 22 to 57 have been approved by the Accounting Officer

_______________________
Mr O. SEABI
Head of GFA
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO THE GAUTENG PROVINCIAL  
LEGISLATURE ON THE GAUTENG FUNDING AGENCY 

Report on the  financial statements 

Introduction 

1. I have audited the financial statements of the Gauteng Funding Agency set out on pages 22 to 57, which comprise 

the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2014, the statement of financial performance, statement of 

changes in net assets and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a 

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
 
Accounting officer’s responsibility for the financial statements 

2. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) 

and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1of 1999) (PFMA), and for such 

internal control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
 
Auditor-general’s responsibility 

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance 

with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the general notice issued in terms thereof and 

International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements, and plan and perform 

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of 

the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 

risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation 

of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 

not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also 

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements 

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion  

6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Gauteng 

Funding Agency as at 31 March 2014 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in 

accordance with the SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA.
 
Emphasis of matter 

7. I draw attention to the matter below.  My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
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Restatement of corresponding figures 

8. As disclosed in note 8 to the financial statements, the prior year’s statement of financial position and corresponding 

balances has been restated as a result of the entity converting from reporting in terms of South African Statements 

of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice to SA Standards of GRAP. 
 
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements  

9. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I report the following findings on the 

reported performance information against predetermined objectives, compliance with laws and regulations and 

internal control, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or 

conclusion on these matters.
 
Predetermined objectives 

10. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 

information for following selected objectives presented in the annual performance report of the entity for the year 

ended 31 March 2014:
•	 Objective: To be a centre of excellence in the public sector in strategic infrastructure financing solutions on   
 pages 62
•	 Objective:  To secure alternative finance sources, including the creation of new revenue streams, thereby   
 ensuring cost efficiencies and consolidating resources of economies of scale on pages 66 to 67 

11. I evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability.  

12. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was presented 

in accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the reported 

performance was consistent with the planned objectives. I further performed tests to determine whether 

indicators and targets were well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound and relevant, as 

required by the National Treasury’s Framework for managing programme performance information (FMPPI). 

13. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete 

14. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for 

the selected objectives.

Additional matter

15. Although we raised no material findings on usefulness and reliability of the reported performance  

information for the selected objectives, we draw attention to the following matter:
 
Achievement of planned targets 

16. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 62 to 67 for information on the achievement of planned targets 

for the year. 

Compliance with legislation 

17. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity had complied with applicable legislation regarding 

financial matters, financial management and other related matters. I did not identify any instances of material 

non-compliance with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA
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Internal control 

18. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual performance report and 

compliance with legislation.  I did not identify any significant deficiencies in internal control.

Johannesburg
31 July 2014
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GAUTENG FUNDING AGENCY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
As at 31 March 2014

 

R’000

R’000 2013

NOTE 2014 restated
ASSETS

Current assets 76 337 65 236

Cash and cash equivalents 4 76 270 65 236

Receivables from exchange transactions 5 67 -

Non-Current assets 6 032 6 555

Receivables from exchange transactions 6 3 212 3 008

Intangible assets 7 - - 

Property, plant and equipment 9 2 820 3 547

Total assets 82 369 71 791
         
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities 13 843 7 079

Trade and other payables from exchange

Transactions 11 13 454 6 816

Leave pay accrual 12 389 263

Non-Current liabilities 127 112

Leave pay provision 127 112

Total liabilities 13 970 7 191

NET ASSETS

Net Assets and Reserves 68 399 64 600

Accumulated surplus 68 399 64 600

Total net assets and liabilities 82 369 71 791
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
For the year ended 31 March 2014

R’000 R’000

NOTE 2014 2013

Transfer payment 15 50 000 50 000

Other income 16 950 3 284

Staff costs 17 (12 787) (10 618) 

Depreciation and amortisation 18               (1 046) (1 508)

Project Development fees (24 251) (14 113)

Other expenditure 19 (9 089) (11 602)

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR  3 777 15 443
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Accumulated 
Surplus

Revaluation
Surplus

Total net 
assets

Balance as at 1 April 2012 46 918 46 918

Total changes during the period 17 682 17 682

Surplus for the year 31 March 2013 15 443 15 443

Movement of Surplus after prior  
period correction                                                8 2 239 2 239

Balance as at 31 March 2013 (restated) 64 600 0 64 600

Balance as at 1 April 2013 64 600 0 64 600

Total changes during the period 3 777 22 3 799

Surplus for the year 31 March 2014 3 777 0 3 777

Movement of Surplus after revaluation of assets 22 22

Balance as at 31 March 2014 68 377 22 68 399
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2014

R’000 R’000

NOTE 2014 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts 51 154 53 284

Transfer payment received 50 000 50 000

Interest received on lease deposit 204 194

Leave paid and accrued - 436

Rental sub- lease income received 950 2 654

Payments (39 795) (47 985)

Employee costs (12 264) (8 868)

Payments to Suppliers (27 531) (39 117)

NET CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 21 11 359 5 299

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment,
leasehold improvements and intangible assets (325) (146)

NET CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (325) (146)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 11 034 5 153

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
year 65 236 60 083

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4 76 270 65 236
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2014

1.  General information

The Gauteng Funding Agency (GFA) is a trading entity of the Gauteng Provincial Treasury (GPT) and was established 
with the approval of the Gauteng Provincial Treasury and the Executive Committee of the Province.

The GFA is governed by the policies and procedures of the GPT and its financial statements are accounted for in terms of 
the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) as from 1 April 2013. As part of the GPT, the GFA is 
audited by the Auditor-General and has to comply with the Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999 (as amended 
by Act 29 of 1999).

2.  Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below and have 
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1      Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Standards of Generally Recognised  
Accounting Practice (GRAP) and in accordance with the following policies, which have been applied consistently 
in all material aspects, unless otherwise indicated. However, where appropriate and meaningful, additional 
information has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the financial statements and to comply with the 
statutory requirements of the Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 1999), 
and the Treasury Regulations issued.

In prior years the GFA had prepared its financial statements in compliance with South African  
Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (SA GAAP). The GFA consequently adopted GRAP including any  
interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB), on 1 April 2013 - refer 
to note 2.2 for more detail.

The financial statements are prepared using the historic cost convention. Except as otherwise disclosed, these 
accounting policies are consistent with those applied in previous years.
 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GRAP requires the use of some 
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of  
applying the accounting policies. The areas that required judgment in the process of application are disclosed 
in policy note 2.20.
 
The financial statements of the GFA have been prepared on a going concern basis.

2.2  Changes in accounting policies and disclosure

The GFA has prepared its financial statements in compliance with Standards of Generally Recognised  
Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting 
Standards Board (ASB), as from 1 April 2013. The list of Standards of GRAP, interpretations and directives 
and the impact on adoption are as follows:

a.  New standards, interpretations and amendments to these adopted by the entity

Applicable Standards of GRAP that the entity is required to apply and that are applicable to the operations 
of the entity:
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Standards Description Objective

GRAP 1 Presentation of Financial Statements The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the basis for 
presentation of general purpose financial statements, to ensure 
comparability both with the entity’s financial statements of 
previous periods and with the financial statements of other 
entities. To achieve this objective, this Standard sets out overall 
considerations for the presentation of financial statements, 
guidelines for their structure and minimum requirements for 
their content. The recognition, measurement and disclosure 
of specific transactions, other events and conditions are dealt 
with in other Standards of GRAP.

In most instances, the application of this Standard of GRAP 
is considered to be consistent with the requirements of the 
equivalent Statement of SA GAAP, which was previously 
complied with.

The impact is mostly related to disclosures and terminology 
changes.

GRAP 2 Cash Flow 
Statements

The objective of this Standard is to require the provision of 
information about the historical changes in cash and cash 
equivalents of an entity by means of a cash flow statement, 
which classifies cash flows during the period from operating, 
investing and financing activities.

The application of this Standard of GRAP is considered to be 
consistent with the requirements of the equivalent Statement of 
SA GAAP, which was previously complied with, and therefore 
has no effect on the amounts previously reported.

GRAP 3 Accounting Policies, Changes in The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the criteria for 
selecting and changing



 

GAUTENG FUNDING AGENCY  2013 / 2014 28

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

Standards Description Objective

Accounting
Estimates and Errors

accounting policies, together with the accounting treatment 
and disclosure of changes in accounting policies, changes 
in accounting estimates and corrections of errors. The 
Standard is intended to enhance the relevance and reliability 
of the entity’s financial statements and the comparability of 
those financial statements over time and with the financial 
statements of other entities.

Disclosure requirements for accounting policies, except 
those for changes in accounting policies, are set out in the 
Standard of GRAP on Presentation of Financial Statements.

The application of this Standard of GRAP is considered to be 
consistent with the requirements of the equivalent Statement of 
SA GAAP, which was previously complied with, and therefore 
has a minimal effect on the amounts previously reported.

The only changes to amounts previously reported relates to 
revaluation of useful lives of property, plant and equipment 
as per

GRAP 17.

GRAP 4 The Effects Of Changes In Foreign 
Exchange Rates

The objective of this Standard is to prescribe how to include 
foreign currency transactions and foreign operations in the 
financial statements of an entity and how to translate financial 
statements into a presentation currency.

The application of this Standard of GRAP is considered to be 
consistent with the requirements of the equivalent Statement of 
SA GAAP, which was previously complied with, and therefore 
has no effect on the amounts previously reported.

GRAP 5 Borrowing Costs This Standard prescribes the accounting treatment for 
borrowing costs. This Standard generally requires an entity to 
capitalise borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset as 
part of the cost of that asset. However, the Standard permits, 
the expensing of borrowing costs where it is inappropriate 
to capitalise borrowing costs that are directly attributable to 
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying 
asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense.
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Standards Description Objective

The application of this Standard of GRAP is considered to be 
consistent with the requirements of the equivalent Statement of 
SA GAAP, which was previously complied with, and therefore 
has no effect on the amounts previously reported.

GRAP 9 Revenue from Exchange Transactions The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the accounting 
treatment of revenue arising from exchange transactions 
and events. The primary issue in accounting for revenue is 
determining when to recognise revenue. Revenue is recognised 
when it is probable that future economic benefits or service 
potential will flow to the entity and these benefits can be 
measured reliably. This Standard identifies the circumstances 
in which these criteria will be met and, therefore, revenue 
will be recognised. It also provides practical guidance on 
the application of these criteria.

In most instances, the application of this Standard of GRAP 
is considered to be consistent with the requirements of the 
equivalent Statement of SA GAAP, which was previously 
complied with.

The impact is mostly related to disclosures that changed.

GRAP 12 Inventories The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the accounting 
treatment for inventories. A primary issue in accounting for 
inventories is the amount of cost to be recognised as an asset 
and carried forward until the related revenues are recognised. 
This Standard provides guidance on the determination of cost 
and its subsequent recognition as an expense, including any 
write-down to net realisable value or current replacement 
cost. It also provides guidance on the cost formulas that are 
used to assign costs to inventories.

In most instances, the application of this Standard of GRAP 
is considered to be consistent with the requirements of the 
equivalent Statement of SA GAAP, which was previously 
complied with.

The only possible impact is that the GFA might recognise 
inventory initially at fair value and subsequently at the lower 
of cost or current replacement cost where it is acquired 
and/or distributed for no cost or for nominal consideration. 
Currently the GFA does not
have inventory therefore there is no impact on adoption 
of GRAP.
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Standards Description Objective

GRAP 13 Leases The objective of this Standard is to prescribe, for lessees and 
lessors, the appropriate accounting policies and disclosures 
to apply in relation to leases.

The application of this Standard of GRAP is considered to be 
consistent with the requirements of the equivalent Statement 
of SA GAAP, which was previously complied with, and therefore 
has no effect on the amounts previously reported.

GRAP 14 Events After the
Reporting Date

The objective of this Standard is to prescribe: 
(a) when an entity should adjust its financial statements for 
events after the reporting date; and

(b) the disclosures that an entity should give about the date 
when the financial statements were authorised for issue and 
about events after the reporting date.

The Standard also requires that an entity should not prepare 
its financial statements on a going concern basis if events after 
the reporting date indicate that the going concern assumption 
is not appropriate.

The application of this Standard of GRAP is considered to be 
consistent with the requirements of the equivalent Statement of 
SA GAAP, which was previously complied with, and therefore 
has no effect on the amounts previously reported.

GRAP 17 Property, Plant and
Equipment

The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the accounting 
treatment for property, plant and equipment so that the 
users of financial statements can discern information about 
an entity’s investment in its property, plant and equipment 
and the changes in such investment. The principal issues in 
accounting for property, plant and equipment are the
recognition of the assets, the determination of
their carrying amounts and the depreciation charges and 
impairment losses to be recognised in relation to them.

In most instances, the application of this Standard of GRAP 
is considered to be consistent with the requirements of the 
equivalent Statement of SA GAAP, which was previously 
complied with.

The only impact is where property, plant and
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Standards Description Objective

equipment were initially acquired for no cost or for nominal 
consideration. These assets were brought into the books of the 
AFS at fair value, less accumulated depreciation calculated 
over the revalued useful lives of these assets.

The requirements of the Standard of GRAP was applied 
retrospectively as per Directive 2.

GRAP 19 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets

The objective of this Standard is to define provisions, contingent 
liabilities and contingent assets, identify the circumstances in 
which provisions should be recognised, how they should be 
measured and the disclosures that should be made about 
them. The
Standard also requires that certain information
be disclosed about contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
in the notes to the financial statements to enable users to 
understand their nature, timing and amount.

The application of this Standard of GRAP is considered to be 
consistent with the requirements of the equivalent Statement of 
SA GAAP, which was previously complied with, and therefore 
has no effect on the amounts previously reported.

GRAP 21 Impairment of Non- cash-generating 
Assets

The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the procedures 
that an entity applies to determine whether a non-cash-
generating asset is impaired and to ensure that impairment 
losses are recognised. The Standard also specifies when 
an entity would reverse an impairment loss and prescribes 
disclosures.

The calculation of the value in use differs from that calculated 
for cash-generating-assets under the Standard of GRAP for 
Impairment of Cash-generating Assets.

The requirements of the Standard of GRAP have been applied 
prospectively as per Directive 2.

GRAP 23 Revenue from Non- exchange Transactions 
(Taxes and Transfers)

The objective of this Standard is to prescribe requirements for 
the financial reporting of revenue arising from non-exchange 
transactions, other than non-exchange transactions that give 
rise to an entity combination. The Standard deals with issues 
that need to be considered in recognising and measuring 
revenue from non-exchange transactions, including the 
identification of contributions from owners.
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Standards Description Objective

The Standard differentiates between conditions and restrictions. 
Only for conditions attached to a non-exchange transaction 
may a liability be recognised, as the conditions are not met 
at reporting date.

The requirements of the Standard of GRAP will be applied 
retrospectively as per Directive 2.

GRAP 25 Employee Benefits The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the accounting 
and disclosure for employee benefits.

The application of this Standard of GRAP is considered to be 
consistent with the requirements of the equivalent Statement of 
SA GAAP, which was previously complied with, and therefore 
has no effect on the amounts previously reported.

GRAP 26 Impairment of Cash- generating 
Assets

The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the procedures 
that an entity applies to determine whether a cash-generating 
asset is impaired and to ensure that impairment losses are 
recognised. The Standard also specifies when an entity would 
reverse an impairment loss and prescribes disclosures.

The application of this Standard of GRAP is considered to be 
consistent with the requirements of the equivalent Statement of 
SA GAAP, which was previously complied with, and therefore 
has no effect on the amounts previously reported.

GRAP 31 Intangible Assets The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the accounting 
treatment for intangible assets that are not dealt with 
specifically in another Standard of GRAP. This Standard 
requires an entity to recognise an intangible asset if, and 
only if, specified criteria are met. The Standard also specifies 
how to measure the carrying amount of intangible assets 
and requires specified disclosures about intangible assets.

In most instances, the application of this Standard of GRAP 
is considered to be consistent with the requirements of the 
equivalent Statement of SA GAAP, which was previously 
complied with.

The only possible impact is that the GFA might recognise 
intangible assets initially at fair value where it is acquired 
for no cost or for nominal consideration. The GFA did not 
have any such intangible assets and there is thus no effect 
on amounts previously reported.
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Standards Description Objective

GRAP 100 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and 
Discontinued Operations

The objective of this Standard is to specify the accounting 
for assets held for sale, and the presentation and 
disclosure of discontinued operations. In particular, 
the Standard requires:

(a) assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held 
for sale to be measured at the lower of carrying amount 
and fair value less costs to sell, and depreciation on 
such assets to cease; and

(b) assets that meet the criteria to be classified as 
held for sale to be presented separately on the face 
of the statement of financial position and the results 
of discontinued operations to be presented separately 
in the statement of financial performance.

The application of this Standard of GRAP is considered 
to be consistent with the requirements of the equivalent 
Statement of SA GAAP, which was previously complied 
with, and therefore has no effect on the amounts 
previously reported.

GRAP 104 Financial 
Instruments

This Standard prescribes recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosure requirements for financial 
instruments. Financial instruments are broadly defined 
as those contracts that result in a financial asset in 
one entity and a financial liability or residual interest 
in another entity. A key distinguishing factor between 
financial assets and financial liabilities and other 
assets and
liabilities, is that they are settled in cash or by
exchanging financial instruments rather than through 
the provision of goods or services.

In most instances, the application of this Standard 
of GRAP is considered to be consistent with the 
requirements of the equivalent Statement of SA GAAP, 
which was previously complied with.

The impact is mostly related to disclosures that changed.

The requirements of the Standard of GRAP have been 
applied retrospectively as per Directive 2.
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Interpretations of the Standards of GRAP that the entity is required to apply and that are applicable to the operations of 
the entity:

Interpretations Description

IGRAP 1 Applying the Probability Test on Initial Recognition of Revenue

IGRAP 3 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease

IGRAP 9 Distributions of Non-Cash Assets to Owners

IGRAP 10 Assets Received From Customers

IGRAP 13 Operating Leases – Incentives

IGRAP 14 Recognised Accounting Practice Evaluating The Substance Of Transactions Involving 
The Legal Form Of A Lease

IGRAP 16 Intangible Assets - Website Costs

Directives issued and effective that the entity is required to apply and that are applicable to the operations of the entity:

Directives Description

Directive 1 Repeal of Existing Transitional Provisions in, and Consequential Amendments to, 
Standards of GRAP

Directive 2 Transitional Provisions for the Adoption of Standards of GRAP by Public Entities, 
Municipal Entities and Constitutional Institutions

Directive 5 Determining the GRAP Reporting Framework

Directive 7 The Application of Deemed Cost on the Adoption of Standards of GRAP

Directive 9 Transitional Provisions for the Adoption of Standards of GRAP by Trading Entities

Improvements to the Standards of GRAP:
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Improvements Description Objective

GRAP 1 Presentation of Financial 
Statements

Minor changes were made. No material impact.

GRAP 3 Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and
Errors

A change to the cost model when a reliable  
measure of fair value is no longer available (or vice versa) 
for an asset that a Standard of GRAP would otherwise 
require or permit to be measured at fair value are no longer 
considered to be achange in an accounting policy in terms 
of  the Standard of GRAP on Accounting Policies, Changes 
in Accounting Estimates and Errors (as revised in 2010).

No impact since not applicable to the GFA

GRAP 7 Investments in
Associates

A requirement to include transaction costs on initial 
recognition of an investment in an associate under the 
equity method has been included in the Standard of GRAP 
Investments in Associates.

No impact since not applicable to the
GFA.

GRAP 9 Revenue from Exchange 
Transactions

Minor changes were made. No material impact.

GRAP 12 Inventories Minor changes were made. No material impact.

GRAP 13 Leases Minor changes were made. No material impact.

GRAP 16 Investment
Property

Changes were made to the Standard of GRAP on Investment 
Property (as revised in 2010) to ensure the consistent 
application of the principle where assets are acquired in 
exchange for non- monetary assets when the exchange 
transaction lacks commercial substance. Furthermore the 
assessment of significant use of an investment property 
has been clarified.

No impact since not applicable to the
GFA.

GRAP 17 Property, Plant and Equipment Changes were made to the Standard of GRAP on Property, 
Plant and Equipment (as revised in 2010) to ensure the 
consistent application of the principle where assets are 
acquired in exchange for non-monetary assets when 
the exchange transaction lacks commercial substance. 
Furthermore, the requirement to disclose property, plant 
and equipment that were temporarily idle, has been 
clarified.

No material impact.
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b.  Standards   of  GRAP   approved,   which   are  effective   for  financial   periods beginning on or after 1 April 2014:

Standards Description Objective

GRAP 20 Related Party
Disclosures

The objective of this Standard is to ensure that a 
reporting entity’s financial statements contain the 
disclosures necessary to draw attention to the 
possibility that its financial position and surplus or deficit may 
have been affected by the existence of related parties and 
by transactions and outstanding balances with such parties.

GRAP 105 Transfer of Functions between Entities 
Under Common Control

The objective of this Standard is to establish accounting 
principles for the acquirer and transferor in a transfer of 
functions between entities under common control.

GRAP 106 Transfer of Functions between Entities 
not Under Common Control

The objective of this Standard is to establish accounting 
principles for the acquirer and acquiree in a transfer of 
functions between entities not under common control.

c.  Standards of GRAP approved, but for which the Minister of Finance has not yet determined an effective date, that 
entities may cSonsider in formulating an accounting policy:

Standards Description Objective
GRAP 20 Related Party

Disclosures
The objective of this Standard is to ensure that a reporting 
entity’s financial statements contain the disclosures necessary 
to draw attention to the possibility that its financial position 
and surplus or deficit may have been affected by the existence 
of related parties and by transactions and outstanding 
balances with such parties.

GRAP 105 Transfer of Functions between Entities 
Under Common Control

The objective of this Standard is to establish accounting 
principles for the acquirer and transferor in a transfer of 
functions between entities under common control.

GRAP 106 Transfer of Functions between Entities 
not Under Common Control

The objective of this Standard is to establish accounting 
principles for the acquirer and acquiree in a transfer of 
functions between entities not under common control.

GRAP 107 Mergers The objective of this Standard is to establish accounting 
principles for the combining entities and combined entity 
in a merger.

d.  Standards of GRAP approved, but for which the Minister of Finance has not yet determined an 
effective date, that entities are not required to apply:

Standards Description Objective
GRAP 18 Segment Reporting The objective of this Standard is to establishprinciples for 

reporting financial information by segments.
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The  following  Standards  of  GRAP,  interpretations,  directives,  amendments  to standards and interpretations that have 
been issued by the ASB and are effective for the period beginning on or after 1 April 2013 are not relevant to the current 
operations of the GFA:

•	 GRAP 6 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
•	 GRAP 7 Investments in Associates
•	 GRAP 8 Interests in Joint Ventures
•	 GRAP 10 Financial Reporting In Hyperinflationary Economies
•	 GRAP 11 Construction Contracts
•	 GRAP 16 Investment Property
•	 GRAP 24 Presentation of Budget information in Financial Statements
•	 GRAP 27 Agriculture
•	 GRAP 103 Heritage Assets
•	 IGRAP 2 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and SimilarLiabilities
•	 IGRAP 4 Practice Rights to Interests Arising From Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation 

Funds
•	 IGRAP 5 Applying the Restatement Approach under The Standard of GRAP on Financial Reporting in 

Hyperinflationary Economies
•	 IGRAP 6 Loyalty Programmes
•	  IGRAP 7 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum funding Requirements and their Interaction
•	 IGRAP 8 Agreements for the Construction of Assets from Exchange Transactions
•	 IGRAP 11 Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities
•	 IGRAP 12 Jointly Controlled Entities – Non-Monetary Contributions by Ventures
•	 IGRAP 15 Revenue – Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services
•	 Directive 3 Transitional provisions for high capacity municipalities
•	 Directive 4 Transitional provisions for medium and low capacity municipalities
•	 Directive 6 Transitional provisions for revenue collected by the South African Revenue Service (SARS)
•	 Directive 8 Transitional provisions for Parliament and Provincial Legislatures

2.3  Functional and presentation currency

All amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (ZAR), which is also the functional 
currency of the entity.

2.4  Rounding

Unless otherwise stated all financial data have been rounded to the nearest one thousand (R’000).

2.5  Foreign currency translation

Monetary  assets  and  liabilities  that  are  denominated  in  foreign  currencies  are translated at the closing 
rate at the reporting date.   Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions 
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates are recognised in the statement of financial performance.

2.6  Impairment of non-cash-generating assets

The GFA reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is any indication that those assets are impaired.

 
If an indication is identified, the GFA estimates the recoverable service amount of the asset in order to determine 
the amount of the impairment, if any.

The recoverable service amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
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Value in use is the present value of the asset’s remaining service potential, and is determined by using the 
depreciated replacement cost approach. The replacement cost of an asset is the cost to replace the asset’s gross 
service potential. This cost is depreciated  to reflect the asset in its used condition. An asset may be 
replaced either through reproduction (replication) of the existing asset or through replacement of its gross service 
potential. The depreciated replacement cost is measured as the reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, 
whichever is lower, less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost, to reflect the already 
consumed or expired service potential of the asset.

If the recoverable  service  amount  of an asset is determined  to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying 
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. The related impairment is recognised as an 
expense in surplus or deficit.

Where  a  change  in  the  underlying  circumstances  indicates  that  a  previously recognised impairment has 
subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable 
service amount. Such reversal is  limited  to  the  carrying  amount  that  would  have  been  determined  had  no 
impairment been recognised for the asset. The related reversal of the impairment is recognised in surplus or deficit.

2.7  Property, plant and equipment

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future 
economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the GFA and the cost or fair value of 
the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, its cost is its fair 
value as at date of acquisition.

After initial recognition, property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment losses.

Repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of financial performance during the financial period in 
which they are incurred.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets to residual values over its expected useful lives 
using the straight-line basis. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

•					Computer	equipment																 –	3-8	years
•					Office	equipment																						 –	3-10	years
•					Office	furniture																									 –	5-10	years
•					Audio	visual	equipment													 –	3-10	years
•					Leasehold	improvements										 –	8	years

This represents a change in estimate in 2014 since depreciation on these assets was previously written off as follows:
•					Computer	equipment																 –	3	years
•					Office	equipment																						 –	3	years
•					Office	furniture																									 –	5	years
•					Audio	visual	equipment													 –	3	years
•					Leasehold	improvements											 –	5	years

Residual values, remaining useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed annually and adjustments are 
made if appropriate.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable service amount if the asset’s carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable service amount.

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future 
economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal.
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Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are 
recognised in the statement of financial performance.

2.8  Intangible assets

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. An asset is identifiable if 
it either:
(a) is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from the GFA  and sold, transferred, licensed, 
rented or exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable asset or liability, 
regardless of whether the GFA intends to do so; or
(b) arises from contractual or other legal rights, excluding those granted by statue, regardless of whether those 
rights are transferable or separable from the GFA or from other rights and obligations.

An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential that are  
attributable to the asset will flow to the GFA and the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost.

When an intangible asset is acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, its cost is its fair value as at date of 
acquisition.

After initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any  
accumulated impairment losses.

Costs associated with the acquisition of computer software are recognised as intangible assets.

Computer software are amortised over their expected useful lives using the straight-line basis. Estimated useful life:
•					Intangible	assets	(software)	–	maximum	1	year
 
The remaining useful lives and amortisation method are reviewed annually and adjustments are made if  
appropriate.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use 
or disposal.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are 
recognised in the statement of financial performance
.

2.9  Leasehold improvements

Leasehold improvements expenditure is capitalised and depreciated over the original lease period of five years 
plus the extended lease period of three years. The amount being depreciated is net of the tenant allowance paid 
to the entity, which reduces the capitalised cost of the leasehold improvements.The tenant allowance paid to the 
entity did not include VAT, as the GFA is not registered for VAT purposes.

2.10  Financial instruments

The GFA classifies its financial instruments based on the purpose for which the financial instruments were  
acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition.

The GFA recognises a financial instrument in its statement of financial position when it becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, including 
transaction costs.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest 
method, less accumulated impairment losses.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest 
method.
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Short-term receivables and payables are not discounted where the initial credit period granted or received is 
consistent with terms used in the public sector, either through established practices or legislation.

For financial instruments measured at amortised cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit when the 
financial instrument is derecognised, and through the amortisation process.

A financial asset is derecognised only when:
•						 the	right	to	receive	cash	flows	from	the	asset	have	expired;
•	 the		GFA		retains		the		right		to		receive		cash		flows		from		the		asset,		but		has	assumed	an	obligation		
  to pay them in full without delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement; or
•	 the	GFA	has	transferred		its	rights	to	receive	cash	flows	from	the	asset	and	either	(a)	has	transferred		
 substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the 
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

A  financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires.

 
A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial 
position when the GFA currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends 
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The statement of financial position includes financial assets classified as financial assets at amortised cost.
Financial assets at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that 
are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 
months after the reporting date.  These  are  classified  as  non-current  assets.  The  GFA’s  financial  assets  at 
amortised cost comprise ‘Receivables’ and ‘Cash and cash equivalents’ in the statement of financial position. 
Details included in note 2.11 and 2.12 respectively.
The  statement of financial position includes financial liabilities classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost.

Financial  liabilities  at amortised  cost are non-derivative  financial  liabilities  with fixed or determinable payments 
that are not quoted in an active market. The GFA’s financial liabilities at amortised cost comprise ‘Trade payables’ 
in the statement of financial position. Details included in note 2.13.

2.11  Receivables

Receivables comprise rental deposit paid. Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

A provision for impairment of receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the GFA will not be 
able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties 
of the receivable, probability  that the receivable  will enter bankruptcy  or financial reorganisation, and default 
or delinquency in payments is considered indicators that the receivable is impaired.

The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective  interest  rate. The impairment  is provided  for by 
reducing  the carrying amount of the asset directly and is recognised in the statement of financial performance.

Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the financial asset’s recoverable amount can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying 
amount of the financial asset at the date that the impairment  is reversed  shall not exceed what the carrying 
amount would have been had the impairment not been recognised. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously 
written off are reversed directly and recognised in the statement of financial performance.

2.12  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balance and petty cash held.
 
Cash and cash equivalents are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method.
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Interest earned on the bank balance does not accrue to the GFA but to the Revenue
Fund of the Gauteng Provincial Government.

2.13  Trade payables

Trade  payables  comprise  accruals  for  services  that  have  been  acquired  in  the ordinary course of business.

Trade payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate method.

2.14  Compensation of employees

The accounting policy in terms of the compensation of employees is in line with the policy of the Gauteng Provincial 
Treasury, and is as follows:

a.  Short-term employee benefits
The  costs  of  short-term  employee  benefits  are  expensed  in  the  statement  of financial performance in the 
year in which it occurs.

Short-term employee benefits that give rise to a present or constructive obligation are recognised and disclosed 
in the notes to the financial statements. This is limited to a Leave pay accrual as set out in note 16.

Salaries  and  wages  shown  in  the  statement  of  financial  performance  comprise payments to employees 
(including leave entitlements, thirteenth cheque and performance bonuses).

b.  Post retirement benefits
Employer contributions are expensed in the statement of financial performance.

No provision is made for retirement benefits in the financial statements of the GFA, or in the financial statements 
of the parent department.   Any potential liabilities are disclosed in the financial statements of the National 
Revenue Funds and not in the financial statements of the employer department.  This policy is in line with the 
Gauteng Provincial Treasury’s policy.

c.  Termination benefits
Termination benefits such severance packages are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial 
performance.

d.  Other long-term employee benefits
Other long-term employee benefits (such as capped leave) are recognised as expenditure in the statement of 
financial performance.

2.15  Key management personnel

Compensation paid to key management personnel is included in the disclosure for related parties.

2.16  Revenue from exchange transactions
 
An exchange transaction is one in which the GFA receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and 
directly gives approximately  equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other 
party in exchange.

The GFA recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and it is probable that future 
economic benefits or service potential will flow to the entity.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. When a receivable 
is impaired, the GFA reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable  amount,  being  the  estimated  future  cash  
flows  discounted  at  the original  effective  interest  rate  of  the  instrument,  and  continues  unwinding  the 
discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognised using the original effective interest rate.
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2.17  Transfer payments and donations (revenue from non-exchange transactions)

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction,  
the GFA either receives value from another party without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange,  
or gives value to another party without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Revenue received from transfer payments and donations are recognised as revenue to the extent that the GFA 
has complied with any of the criteria, conditions or obligations embodied in the agreement. To the extent that 
the criteria, conditions or obligations have not been met, a liability is recognised.

As the GFA satisfies the present obligation recognised as a liability, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability 
and recognises an amount of revenue equal to that reduction.

Revenue from non-exchange transactions comprises the fair value of a transfer payment received or receivable 
from the Gauteng Provincial Treasury.

The GFA received a transfer payment from Gauteng Provincial Treasury to fund its operating expenditure which 
is recognised in full as revenue.

2.18  Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified 
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are 
charged to the statement of financial performance on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The lease for the building is classified as an operating lease and payments made under the operating lease 
are charged to the statement of financial performance on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. The 
difference between actual lease payments and the amount recognised is shown as part of current liabilities.

The lease commitment for future years is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
 

2.19  Commitments

Contracted commitments (except for the lease of the building) to be paid after 1 April 2014 are not recognised 
in the statement of financial position as a liability or as expenditure in the statement of financial performance, 
but are included in the disclosure notes.

These commitments are linked to specific service delivery contracts and are payable in future years.

2.20  Key areas of judgment in applying accounting policies

The following key areas of judgment were required in preparation of the financial statements:

i.  The estimated useful lives of assets are based on its expected useful lives and are measured against the  
  industry norms.
ii.  Residual values of assets for the year amounts to Nil, as the residual values are deemed insignificant in  
  relation to the value of the assets.

2.21  Unauthorised expenditure

When confirmed unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an asset in the statement of financial position, until  
such time as the expenditure is either approved by the relevant authority, recovered from the responsible person  
or written off as irrecoverable.

Unauthorised expenditure approved with funding is derecognised from the statement of financial position when 
the unauthorised expenditure is approved and the related funds are received.

Where the amount is approved without funding it is recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial  
performance on the date of approval.
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2.22  Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial performance 
according to the nature of the payment and not as a separate line item on the face of the statement of financial 
performance. If the expenditure is recoverable  it is treated as an asset until it is recovered from the responsible 
person or written off as irrecoverable.

2.23  Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial performance. If the relevant  authority 
does not condone the expenditure it is treated as an asset until it is recovered or written off as irrecoverable.

2.24  Budget information
 
The budget of the GFA is not made available publically and thus no comparatives between budgeted and actual 
activities are given. The approved budget of the GFA is prepared on a cash basis and presented by economic  
classification  linked  to
 
performance outcome objectives. It covers the fiscal period from 01 April 2013 to 31 March 2014.

2.25  Related parties

The GFA, being a trading entity of the Gauteng Treasury, is related through this relationship, to all other GPG  
Departments and entities, as well as National Government Departments

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, 
including  those charged  with the governance of the entity in accordance with legislation, in instances where  
they are required to perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to 
influence management, or be influenced by management in their dealings with the entity.

Only transactions with related parties not in arm’s length or not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed.

3.  Financial risk management

Financial risk factors
The  GFA’s activities expose it to some financial risks, most of which are managed through procurement  
and payments  being done through the Shared Services Division within the Gauteng Department of Finance.  
The GFA did not have direct access to its bank account, and thus cash management was not performed at 
GFA but at GPT.

Risk management is carried out and monitored by a central team within Gauteng Provincial Treasury under 
policies approved by the Head of Department.

The Gauteng Provincial Treasury has written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies 
covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and credit risk, as well as guidelines 
on investment of excess liquidity. As a trading entity of the Gauteng Provincial Treasury, these principles 
apply to the GFA.

The most significant financial risks are related to reporting (inaccurate financial information that 
might  result in inaccurate reporting and not meeting reporting deadlines in terms of PFMA) and  
financial systems (payment systems not aligned to business processes). The risk of reporting was mitigated 
by the implementation of an independent financial package, enabling the GFA to record financial  
information on an accrual basis.
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 a. Market risk
Fair value interest rate risk
The GFA has an interest-bearing asset, being the rental deposit. Interest is earned and capitalised every year at 
a rate of prime minus 2%, compounded annually in arrears.

Exposure to market interest rates is limited to interest earned on the rental deposit and to interest payable on late 
settlement of accounts, which is governed by the 30-day payment period of the GPG.

 b.  Credit risk
Credit risk was managed on a departmental basis. Although the GFA did have its own bank account,  
Gauteng Provincial Treasury performed cash management and deposits with banks and financial institutions.

The interest bearing rental deposit is governed by the contractual agreement that all interests accrue at prime 
less 2% at the end of each year.  Interest accrued is added to the deposit and becomes payable at the date of 
return of the deposit.

Maximum exposure to credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each financial asset 
mentioned in note 13, 14 and 15.

Receivables pledged as security
The GFA does not hold any collateral as security.

Credit quality of financial assets neither past due nor impaired
The credit quality of both non-current and current receivables is high.  With GPT being the parent 
department of the GFA, the financial asset (debt) can be offset against future refund payments for salary 
payments (GFA refunds GPT on a monthly basis for salaries paid on its behalf).

The deposit and interest capitalised can be offset against future rental payments.

Receivables past due but not impaired
The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows: The deposit and capitalised interest is not yet 
payable.

 c. Liquidity risk
For the GFA, prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash to meet its commitments.  
To a certain extent, the Gauteng Provincial Treasury through its cash management programme covered this.  
However, the GFA had the responsibility to limit spending and commitment of funds to the approved budget/
transfer payment.

Maturity analysis

Financial liability  Due in less than a 
year

Due in two to five 
year

Total

Trade payables 10 943 - 10 943
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4.  Cash and cash equivalents    

Cash and cash equivalents 

R’000 R’000

2014 2013

76 270 65 236

Cash and cash equivalents represent money held in the bank account of the Gauteng Funding Agency (GFA), as well 
as the balance of petty cash held. Interest earned on the bank balance did not accrue to  the GFA but  to the Revenue 
Fund of the Gauteng Provincial Government.

5. Current Receivables from exchange transaction

Rent Receivable 

R’000 R’000

2014 2013

67 -

67 -
 

The GFA sub-lets the ground floor to the GPG DAV center.

6. Non-Current Receivables from exchange transactions

R’000

2014

R’000

2013

Deposits held 2 229 2 229

Interest receivable 983 779

3 212 3 008

Deposits  held represents  the leasehold  deposit paid; with interest  receivable  being interest accrued on the deposit held.

 
7. Intangible assets

R’000

Cost

2014
R’000

Accumu- lated 
amortisation

R’000

Carrying 
value

R’000

Cost

2013
R’000

Accumu- lated 
amortisation

R’000

Carrying 
value

Accounting & 
general software 542 542 - 457 457 -

542 542 - 457 457 -
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The carrying amounts of intangible assets can be reconciled as follows:

        2014

R’000
Carrying value at the 
beginning of the year

R’000
Addtions

R’000
Amortisation for 

the year

R’000
Carrying value at the 

end of the year

Accounting & general 
software - 84 84 -

- 84 84 -

        2013

R’000
Carrying value at the 
beginning of the year

R’000
Additions

R’000
Amortisation for 

the year

R’000
Carrying value at the 

end of the year

Accounting & general 
software 4 116 120 -

4 116 120 -

8. Prior Year adjustments

As part of the conversion from GAAP to GRAP, the useful lives of assets were revalued and depreciation  on those assets 
were adjusted.   Adjustments  were made for prior year corrections, where depreciation was charged at too high a cost.

As per GRAP, some assets were brought into the books at cost, although it was brought into the entity at no cost for the 
GFA – corrections in terms of these assets were made in terms of Directive 2.

Line items in the General Ledger that were affected by these corrections are: Costs (for items previously shown at zero 
value) Accumulated Depreciation (to adjust for revalued useful lives) – Surplus of 2013
Current year depreciation (calculated on the new revalued useful lives)

Adjustments were as follows:

R’000 R’000

2014 2013

Cost
22

Accumulated Depreciation/Surplus 2013 2 239
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9. Property, plant and equipment

As part of the conversion from GAAP to GRAP, the useful lives of all property, plant and equipment were revalued.   Assets 
that were acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, and that were previously shown as zero valued, were brought into 
account as at 1 April 2013 at its fair value as at date of acquisition.

R’000

Cost

2014
R’000

Accumu-lated 
deprecia- tion

R’000

Carrying 
value

R’000

Cost

2013
Restated

R’000
Accumu-lated 
deprecia- tion

R’000

Carrying 
value

Computer equipment  

Office equipment

Office furniture  
Audio visual 
equipment  
Small assets 
Leasehold 
improvements

815

1 135

2 616
187

18
3 298

496

757

1 403
138

18
2 437

319

378

1 213
49

-
861

631

1 093

2 606
187

18
3 298

378

617

1 143
124

18
2 006

253

476

1 463
63

-
1 292

8 069 5 249 2 820 7 833 4 286 3 547

2014

R’000
Carrying 

value at the 
beginning

of the year

R’000
Additions

R’000
Capitalised 

assets

R’000
Disposals

R’000
Deprecia- 

tion for the 
year

R’000
Carrying 

value at the 
end of the 

year

Computer equipment 

Office equipment 

Office furniture 

Audio visual 
equipment 

Small assets 
Leasehold 
improvements

253

476

1 463

63

-
1 292

209

31

-

-

-
-

-

10

12

-

-
-

25

-

2

-

-
-

117

141

260

14

-
430

320

376

1 213

49

-
862

3 547 240 22 27 962 2 820
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2013 Restated
R’000

Cost
Before

R’000

Cost
After

2013
R’000

Accumulated 
depreciation 

Before 
adjustment

2013
R’000

Accumulated 
depreciation 

After 
adjustment

R’000

Carrying 
value Before 
Adjustment

R’000

Carrying 
value After 
Adjustment

Computer equipment 

Office equipment 

Office furniture 

Audio visual equipment 

Small assets 
Leasehold
 improvements

631

1 066

2 612
187

18
3 298

631

1 093

2 606
187

18
3 298

588

837

1 620
143

18
3 298

378

617

1 143
124

18
2 006

43

229

992
44

-
-

253

476

1 463
63

-
1 292

7 812 7 833 6 504 4 286 1 308 3 547

2013 Restated
R’000

Carrying value at 
the beginning of 

the year

R’000
Additions

R’000
Disposals

R’000
Depreciation for 

the year

R’000
Carrying value 

at the end of the 
year

Computer equipment 

Office equipment

Office furniture Audio 
visual equipment

Small assets
Leasehold 
improvements

334

689

1 835
99

-
1 973

-

15

10
-

5
-

22

-

3
-

  
-
-

59

228

379
36

5
681

253

476

1 463
63

-
1 292

4 930 30 25 1 388 3 547

All assets of the GFA are non-cash generating assets.

Remaining  useful lives of assets were estimated  based on the general  condition  of the assets, as well as the 
technical specifications and usability thereof.
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10. Categories of financial instruments:

R’000 R’000

2014 2013

Financial assets Financial assets at amortised cost:

Non-Current Receivables 3 212 3 008

Current Receivables 67 -

Cash and cash equivalents 76 270 65 236

79 549 68 244

Financial liabilities Financial liabilities at amortised cost:

Trade payables 10 943 5 066

Trade payables shown as financial liabilities represent amounts not paid at year end and thus accrued for.

11.  Trade and other payables from exchange transactions

R’000

2014

R’000

2013

Accruals 10 943 5 066

Straight lining of lease payments 380 -

Gauteng Provincial Treasury 2 131 1 750

13 454 6 816

12.  Leave pay provision

R’000

2014

R’000

2013

Leave pay provision 127 112

Leave pay accrual 389 263

516 375

The short term portion of leave pay commitments  are shown as an accrual, where provisions  
, represent the long term (longer than 12 months) liability to the GFA.
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13. Contractual commitments

The  entity  has  service  delivery  contracts  that  are  cancellable  on  notice  periods  as stipulated 
in the contracts.  These liabilities will be paid from the operating budget for the  next  year.   The  
cost  contracted  but not yet incurred  at statement  of financial position date are as follows:

R’000 R’000

2014 2013

Contracted 8 949 3 960

Details of the 2014 Contracted Commitments are as follows:

Service 
Rendered/Project

Vendor Name Commitment 
Value

Catering services CVC Caterers CC 17

Catering services Top Ten Catering and Security CC 10

Consulting fees: financial services Altimax Training Academy (Pty) Ltd 52

Courier Services Crossroads Distribution (Pty) Ltd 3

Green Energy Agenda Pamoja Capital (Pty) Ltd 734

Kopanong Precinct Aloe Cap (Pty) Ltd 1 819

Legal cost Cliffe Dekker Hofmeyr Incorporated 373

Procurement of asset Pro Networks CC 18

Refilling of water, coolers purified Pureau Fresh Water Company (Pty) Ltd 3

Registration fees The Standard Bank Of South Africa Ltd 2

Rental of cellphone Vodacom Service Provider Company 70

Repair of air conditioner Hlabologa Airconditioning (Pty) Ltd 3

Service & maintenance - Fire alarm ADT Security (Pty) Ltd 4

Service & maintenance - Fumigation service Fumigation Worx 3

Service & maintenance - Plants Thatego Landscapes CC 12

Service & maintenance - Printers Bytes Document Solutions 14

Team building and team coaching Riskflow Institute (Pty) Ltd 16

TIH: EB2 Project Utho Capital (Pty) Ltd 952

TIH: EB3 Project Pamoja Capital (Pty) Ltd 2 545

Training Gordon Institute of Business Science 15

Training Regenesys School Of Public Managers 14

West Rand Integrated Airport Project Delta Built Environmnet Consultants 145

West Rand Waste to Energy Project Utho Capital (Pty) Ltd 399

7 223
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14. Lease commitment: building

The entity leases property under a non-cancellable contract.  Minimum lease payments on non-cancellable operating 
leases are as follows:

R’000 R’000

2014 2013

Less than one year 5 003 4 633

More than one year, not greater than five years 5 404 10 407

10 407 15 040

The  term  of the  lease  is 3 years  and  ends  31 March  2016.  Lease  rental  payments escalate by 8% annually 
and are payable monthly in advance.

15.  Transfer payment

A transfer payment is received annually from Gauteng Provincial Treasury, the controlling entity of GFA.  This transfer 
payment is used to cover the operating costs of the GFA for the year.

16.  Other income

R’000

2014

R’000

2013

Leave paid and accrued -   49

Interest received 204 194

Claim write-off - 387

Rental Sub-lease Income 746 2 654

950 3 284

Rental Sub-lease

The lease agreement expired on the 31 March 2013, together with the GPF sub-lease. A new lease agreement was 
entered into for the ground floor and second floor. A new sub-lease was signed with DAC centre, which expires 
on the 31 March 2016.
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17. Staff costs

R’000 R’000

2014 2013

Basic salaries 11 665 9 744

Employer Contribution: Medical 137 102

Employer Contribution: Pension 844 772

Leave paid and accrued 141 -

12 787 10 618

18.  Depreciation and amortization

R’000 R’000

2014 2013

Depreciation: Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of computer equipment 117 59

Depreciation of office equipment 141 228

Depreciation of office furniture 260 379

Depreciation of audio visual equipment 14 36

Depreciation of small assets - 5

Depreciation of leasehold improvements 430 681

962 1 388

Amortisation:  Intangible assets 84 120

TOTAL 1 046 1 508
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19.  Other expenditure

R’000 R’000

2014 2013

Other expenditure includes the following items:

Audit fees 527 466

Expenses - -

Lease expense 5 605 9 306

Property lease payment 5 013 6 833

Rent-lease operational costs 592 2 473

R’000

2014

R’000

2013

Marketing 278 71

IT Consumables 91 156

Loss on write-off of fixed assets 27 25

Loss on transfer of fixed assets - -

Venues and facilities 932 88

Courier Services 2 47

Bursaries - -

Telephone expenses 374 520

Travel 506 165

Subscriptions 53 77

Printing 265 176

Staff training 266 281

Entertainment 79 120

Security cost 11 14

Repair and maintenance cost 39 83

Other costs 34 7 

9 089 11 602

In March 2014, the GFA hosted the Gauteng Funding Fair on behalf of the GPG.  This resulted in a significant increase 
from last year in the Venues and Facilities expense.
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20. Taxation

No provision for taxation has been made in the financial statements, as the GFA is not a tax paying entity. (The entity, as 
part of the Department of Finance, is exempt, as per S10 of the Income Tax Act, 1962 (Act 58 of 1962)).

21.  Net Cashflows from operating activities

R’000 R’000

2014 2013

 

Surplus for the year 3 777 15 443

Adjusted for: 1 073 1 533

Depreciation and amortisation 1 046 1 508

Loss on write-off of fixed assets 27 25

4 850 16 976

Changes in working capital: 6 509 (11 677)

(Increase)/decrease   in   current   and   non-current 
receivables (271) 1 752

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 6 780 (13 429)

11 359 5 299
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22. Related parties and related party transactions

A.  The  GFA  is  a  trading  entity  under  the  control  of  Gauteng  Provincial  Treasury; therefore Gauteng Provincial 
Treasury is considered its controlling. The following transactions took place between GPT and the GFA:

R’000 R’000

2014 2013

Transfer payment 50 000 50 000
 

B.        Through its relationship with the Gauteng Treasury,  the GFA is to all other GPG Departments and entities,as 
well as provincial municipalities. The following transactions took place between GFA and other Departments:

•	 Gauteng	Department	of	Education:	Gauteng	Schools	Programme
•	 Gauteng	Department	of	Roads	and	Transport:	William	Nicol	Project
•	 Gauteng	Department		of		Economic		Development:		Jewellery		Manufacturing
  Project and Sedibeng and West Rand Waste to Energy Projects
•	 Tshwane	Innovation	Hub:	Enterprise	Building	2	&	3
•	 Department	of	Sports	and	Recreation:	Provincial	Archives	and	Libraries
•	 Department		of		Infrastructure		Development:		Gauteng		Green		Agenda	and	Kopanong	Precinct	projects
•	 West	Rand	District	Municipality:	West	rand	Integrated	Regional	Airport

No remuneration is received by GFA forthese  services, andthus these are not considered arm’s length.

C. GFA Sub-lets the ground floor of 82 Grayston Drive, Sandton to DAV Centre, which forms part of Gauteng Department 
of finance(Refer to note 16) This is an ars length transaction.

D. The compensation paid for management is shown below: Senior Management Emoluments:

R’000

2014

R’000

2013

Head of GFA: PH Seabi 1 739 1 632

Basic salary 932  883

Non pensionable allowance 667 615

Employee contribution: Medical aid 19 19

Employee Contribution: Pension 121 115

Financial Manager: RV Molate 858 752

Basic salary 599 525

Non pensionable allowance 171 149

Employee contribution: Medical aid 10 10

Employee Contribution: Pension 78 68

Manager:  Administration: MZ Hamilton 901 861

Basic salary 831 794

Employee Contribution: Pension 70 67
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Manager:  Stakeholder Management: AJN Kitime 1 189 1 093

Basic salary 832 788

Non pensionable allowance 179 170

Service bonus (salary structuring) 70 33

Employee Contribution: Pension 108 102

Manager: Strategy & Monitoring: L Tladinyane 998 866

Basic salary 595 516

Non pensionable allowance 326 283

Employee contribution: Medical aid - -

Employee Contribution: Pension 77 67

Project Manager: EB Marais 1 137 971

Basic salary 682 580

Non pensionable allowance 110 154

Employee contribution: Medical aid 39 23

Employee Contribution: Pension 89 76

Home Owner Allowance 160 90

Service bonus (salary structuring) 57 48

Project Accountant: Y Huang 1 189 1 114

Basic salary 832 758

Non pensionable allowance 357 356

Chief Financial Officer: R Kruger * 750 -

Basic salary 747 -

Non pensionable allowance 3 -
* The CFO was appointed  as from  5 August  2013 and amount  shown  does thus not represent a full year’s 
remuneration

No performance bonuses were paid in 2012/13 and 2013/14 financial years.



GAUTENG FUNDING AGENCY  2013 / 2014 57

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

23.  Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure

The GFA has incurred fruitless expenditure in prior financial years.  This was due to office space rented but not utilised. 
The extra space rented was based on the strategic planning as at the time.  Changes in leadership influenced the 
direction of the GFA significantly, resulting in the change of requirement for office space.  The GFA has resolved the 
matter by sub-letting unutilized space in subsequent years and at the end of the lease period, only rental for space 
utilised was renewed.

There was no fruitless and wasteful expenditure for the current financial year.

Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure:

R’000 R’000

2014 2013

Opening Balance 6 211 6 211

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure – current year - -

6 211 6 211

    
24.  Irregular Expenditure

The GFA did not have any irregular expenditure to report

25. Contingencies

There are no contingencies to report
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE – CLUSTER 02

Gauteng Funding Agency

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2014.

Audit Committee and Attendance

The Audit Committee consists of the external Members listed hereunder and is required to meet a minimum of at least 
two times per annum as per provisions of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA). In terms of the approved Terms of 
Reference (GPG Audit Committee Charter), six meetings were held during the current year, i.e. four meetings to consider 
the Quarterly Performance Reporting (financial and non-financial) and two meetings to review and discuss the Annual 
Financial Statements and the Auditor-General of South Africa’s (AGSA) Audit and Management Reports.

Non-Executive Members

Name of Member       Number of Meetings Attended 

Mr. Mfanyana Salanje (Chairperson)    01 (Resigned September 2013)
   
Mr. Japie du Plessis (Chairperson)     05 (Appointed October 2013)

Ms. Maemili Ramataboe (Member)    05
 
Ms. Halima Nazeer (Member)     04

Executive Members
In terms of the GPG Audit Committee Charter, officials listed hereunder are obliged to attend meetings of the Audit Committee:

Compulsory Attendees     Number of Meetings Attended
Mr. Oupa Seabi (Accounting Officer)    05 

Ms. Rianda Kruger (Chief Financial Officer)   05       
   
The Audit Committee noted that the Accounting Officer did not attend one scheduled Audit Committee meeting. However a 
letter of apology was tendered with a duly authorised representative attending on his behalf. Therefore, the Audit Committee 
is satisfied that the Entity adhered to the provisions of the GPG Audit Committee Charter. 

The Members of the Audit Committee met with the Senior Management of the Department and Internal Audit, collectively to 
address risks and challenges facing the Entity. A number of in-committee meetings were held to address control weaknesses 
and deviations within the Entity.

Audit Committee Responsibility
 
The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 38(1)(a) of the PFMA and 
Treasury Regulation 3.1.13. The Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference 
as its Audit Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this Charter and has discharged all its 
responsibilities as contained therein.
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The effectiveness of internal control and Information and Communication Technology (ICT) 
Governance

The Audit Committee has observed that the overall control environment of the Entity has continued to improve during the 
year under review.
The Audit Committee also reviewed the progress with respect to the ICT Governance in line with the ICT Framework issued 
by the Department of Public Services and Administration.  Although there was significant progress on the ICT internal 
control, the Audit Committee is of the opinion that more attention must be allocated to the implementation of the Disaster 
Recovery Plan and the Business Continuity Plan.  This continued to be a high risk for the Entity. 

Internal Audit 

The Audit Committee is satisfied that the Internal Audit plan represents a clear alignment with the key risks, has adequate 
information systems coverage, and a good balance across the different categories of audits, i.e. risk-based, mandatory, 
performance, computer and follow-up audits.

The Audit Committee has noted considerable improvement in the communication between the Executive Management, 
the AGSA and the Internal Audit Function, which has strengthened the Corporate Governance initiatives within the Entity.

The Audit Committee wishes to stress that in order for the Internal Audit Function to operate at optimal level as expected 
by the Audit Committee, the shortage in human resources and skills should be addressed. 

Risk Management

Progress on the Entity’s risk management was reported to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.  The Audit Committee 
is satisfied that the actual management of risk is receiving attention, although there are areas that still require improvement.  
Management should take full responsibility for the entire Enterprise Risk Management Process and continue to support the 
Chief Risk Officer to even further enhance the performance of the Entity.

Forensic Investigations

No forensic investigations were reported for the Entity during the financial year under review.

The quality of quarterly reports submitted in terms of the PFMA and the Division of Rev-
enue Act 

The Audit Committee is satisfied with the content and quality of financial and non-financial quarterly reports prepared 
and submitted by the Accounting Officer of the Entity during the year under review and confirms that the reports were in 
compliance with the statutory reporting framework.

Evaluation of Financial Statements

The Audit Committee has:
•	 Reviewed and discussed the audited Annual Financial Statements  to be included in the Annual Report, with the 

AGSA and the Accounting Officer;
•	 Reviewed the Audit Report of the AGSA;
•	 Reviewed the AGSA’s Management Report and Management’s response thereto; 
•	 Reviewed the Department’s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions; and 
•	 Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit. 

The Audit Committee concurs with and accepts the AGSA’s conclusions on the Annual Financial Statements, and is of the 
opinion that the audited Annual Financial Statements be accepted and read together with the report of the AGSA.
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One-on-One Meeting with the Accounting Offi cer

The Audit Committee has met with the Accounting Offi cer for the Entity to address unresolved issues.

One-on-One Meetings with the Executive Authority

The Audit Committee has met with the Executive Authority for the Entity to apprise the MEC on the performance of the Entity.

Auditor-General of South Africa 

The Audit Committee has met with the AGSA to ensure that there are no unresolved issues.

…………………………………………
Mr. Japie du Plessis

Chairperson of the Audit Committee

Date:

…………………………………………
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SECTION 4: PERFORMANCE AGAINST TARGETS 
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ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 2013/14
PERFORMANCE AGAINST TARGETS

This sections provides information on performance against targets and it provides the deviations and reasons for deviations 
that might have occurred in 2013/14.

Strategic 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators

Performance Against Targets Reasons for 
Deviations

Remedial 
Plans2013/14 Planned 

Target
2013/14 Actual 

Target

To be a centre 
of excellence 
in the public 
sector in strategic 
infrastructure 
financing solutions

Number of research 
projects conducted 
in line with GFA’s  
Research Agenda

2 research projects 
conducted in 2012/13 
in line with GFA’s 
Research Agenda of 
providing infrastructure 
financing solutions

2 research projects 
conducted:
1. Grant and Donor 

Funding Research
2. Desk-top literature 

research on 
infrastructure 
finance best 
practices. 

Credible and reliable 
monitoring and 
evalution framework 
for funded and 
implemented 
infrastructure projects

Develop and 
implement the 
Monitoring and 
Evaluation Framework 
and electronic system 
for projects prepared 
and developed by GFA

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Framework 
developed and the 
Electronic System 
developed

Fully functional and 
effective knowledge 
management for 
GFA

Functional Knowledge 
Management 
Framework and System 
for GFA

Knowledge 
Management 
and Document 
Management System 
is functional

Credible and reliable 
Service Delivery 
Model for Project 
Preparation

Review and Implement 
the Service Delivery 
Model for Project 
Preparation Facility

Reviewed and 
implemented the 
Service Delivery Model 
for Project Preparation 
Facility 

Approved and 
implementable 
Training and 
Development Plan 
for all Government 
Component staff 
personnel

3 year Training 
and Development 
Plan aligned to 
the Government 
Component business 
case developed and 
implemented

3 year Training and 
Development Plan 
developed and aligned 
to Government 
Component business 
case 



GAUTENG FUNDING AGENCY  2013 / 2014 63

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

To ensure sound 
corporate 
governance in 
the GFA and to 
provide effective and 
efficient resource 
management 
services 

Timeous submission 
of qualitative and 
accurate reports on 
monthly, quarterly and 
annual basis

Submit qualitative and 
accurate compliance 
reports timeously on 
monthly, quarterly and 
annual basis

Qualitative and 
accurate compliance 
reports are timeously 
submitted on monthly, 
quarterly and annual 
basis e.g In-Year 
Monitoring, Quarterly 
Interim Financial 
Statements and 
Annual Financial 
Statement

Credible and effective 
business processes, 
procedures and 
systems for GFA 
finance

Review finance 
business processes, 
procedures and 
systems 

Reviewed finance 
business processes, 
procedures and 
systems 

Effective monitoring of 
contracts concluded 
between GFA and 
service providers 

All contracts concluded 
between GFA and 
service providers 
effectively monitored 
in line with projects 
developed in 2013/14 
financial year

Concluded all 
contracts between 
GFA and service 
providers effectively 
monitored in line with 
projects developed 
in 2013/14 financial 
year

Number of SLAs 
concluded with 
client departments, 
municipalities or 
agencies

5 Service Level 
Agreements 
concluded with 
client departments, 
municipalities or 
agencies

Concluded 5 Service 
Level Agreements with 
client departments, 
municipalities or 
agencies 

Credible and Reliable 
Risk Management and 
Internal Audit Strategy 
for GFA

Review GFA’s Risk 
Management and 
Internal Audit Strategy 
and update

Reviewed and 
updated GFA’s Risk 
Management and 
Internal Audit Strategy 

Credible and reliable 
Business Continuity 
Plan (BCP) for GFA

Review and implement 
GFA’s Business 
Continuity Plan 

Reviewed and 
implemented GFA’s 
Business Continuity 
Plan 

Credible and reliable 
GFA governance 
structures 

Review and implement 
GFA governance 
structures namely 
DAC, Risk Committee, 
Senior Management 
and Project Finance 

Reviewed and 
implemented GFA 
governance structures 

Credible and reliable 
Strategic Planning 
and Performance 
Information 
Framework 

Review and implement 
the Strategic Planning 
and Performance 
Information 
Management 
Framework

Reviewed and 
implemented the 
Strategic Planning 
and Performance 
Information 
Management 
Framework
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Strategic 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators

Performance Against Targets Reasons for 
Deviations

Remedial 
Plans2013/14 Planned 

Target
2013/14 Actual 

Target

To ensure sound 

corporate 

governance in the 

GFA and to provide 

effective and 

efficient resource 

management 

services 

Timeous submission 

of credible 

and quality 

organisational 

performance reports

Qualitative 2013/14 

Organisational 

performance reports 

(Quarterly and 

Annual)

Submitted qualitative 

organisational reports 

quarterly and annually

Approved and 

implementable APP

2014/15 Annual 

Performance Plan and 

Operational Plans 

approved 

Developed the 

2014/15 Annual 

Performance Plan and 

Operational Plans

Type of audit 

opinion received 

from Auditor 

General

Clean audit opinion 

for GFA for the 

financial year 

2012/13

GFA achieved a clean 

audit opinion for 

2012/13 financial year

To be a preferred 

employer, attracting 

and retaining 

highly skilled 

and performing 

individuals.

Percentage of 

posts filled as per 

approved structure

85% of posts filled 

as per approved 

structure

60% of posts filled as 

per current structure 

Awaiting 

registration 

of GFA as a 

Government 

Component 

Constant 

engagement with 

DPSA, National 

Treasury and 

the Presidency 

to fast-track the 

promulgation 

process

Approved and 

implementable 

Change 

Management 

Strategy

Change Management 

Strategy aligned to 

the Government 

Component business 

case

Change Management 

Strategy developed 

and aligned to 

the Government 

Component business 

case

Efficient 

management 

and control of HR 

documents, records 

and HR related 

matters within GFA

Implement efficient 

management 

and control of HR 

documents, records 

and HR related 

matters within GFA in 

2013/14

Implemented efficient 

management 

and control of HR 

documents, records 

and HR related matters 

within GFA 

Approved and 

implementable 

Performance 

Management Plan 

in compliance 

to GPG Policy 

on Performance 

Management and 

Development of 

2003

Implement the 

Performance 

Management Plan in 

compliance to GPG 

Policy on Performance 

Management and 

Development of 2003

Implemented 

the Performance 

Management Plan in 

compliance to GPG 

Policy on Performance 

Management and 

Development of 2003
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To be a preferred 

employer, 

attracting and 

retaining highly 

skilled and 

performing 

individuals.

Efficient 

management of 

GFA facilities and 

compliance with 

relevant legislation, 

regulations and 

policies on facilities 

management

Manage GFA facilities 

efficiently and in 

compliance with relevant 

legislation, regulations 

and policies on facilities 

management

GFA facilities managed 

efficiently and in 

compliance with relevant 

legislation, regulations 

and policies on facilities 

management:

•	Security	checks

•	Emergency	evacuation 

   drills

•	Asset	management

•	Telephony	Reports

Efficient 

management of GFA 

ICT in compliance 

with government ICT 

policy

Ensure efficient 

management of GFA 

ICT in compliance with 

government ICT policy 

Ensured efficient 

management of GFA 

ICT in compliance with 

government ICT policy:

•	Daily	maintenance	

•	Software	upgrades

•	Hardware	upgrades

To support 

efforts to secure 

alternative 

sources of 

funding through 

effective 

communications, 

marketing and 

stakeholder 

engagements

Comprehensive 

and implementable  

Communications 

and Marketing 

Strategy of GFA

Develop and implement 

the Marketing and 

Communications 

Strategy in line with 

the Government 

Component’s Business 

Case 

Developed and 

implemented the 

Marketing and 

Communications 

Strategy 

Approved and 

implementable 

Communications 

Policy

Develop and implement 

the Communications 

Policy 

Developed and 

implemented the GFA’s 

Communications Policy

Comprehensive 

and implementable 

Marketing and 

Branding Strategy

Review and implement a 

Marketing and Branding 

Strategy 

The Marketing and 

Branding Strategy 

not reveiwed and 

implemented 

The Marketing 

and Branding 

Strategy awaited 

the promulgation 

process to be 

completed in 

order to market 

and brand 

the new entity 

as Gauteng 

Infrastructure 

Funding Agency

The terms of 
reference for 
marketing and 
branding have 
been completed 
and plans are 
in place to roll 
out as soon as 
promulgation is 
published

Comprehensive 

and implementable 

Stakeholder 

Management Plan

Review and implement a 

Stakeholder Analysis and 

Stakeholder Relations 

Management Plan 

Review and developed a 

Stakeholder Analysis and 

Stakeholder Relations 

Management Plan

Number of 

partnership 

agreements with 

commercial banks 

and development 

finance institutions

Partnership agreement 

concluded with 

commercial banks and 

development finance 

institutions (local and 

international) 

No partnership 

agreement was 

concluded with 

commercial banks and 

development finance 

institutions (local and 

international) 

The partnership 

agreements 

of this nature 

(infrastructure 

financing) tend to 

be a protracted 

process 

Develop a 
partnership 
and funder 
engagement 
strategy and 
plan 
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Strategic 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators

Performance Against Targets Reasons for 
Deviations

Remedial 
Plans2013/14 

Planned Target
2013/14 Actual 

Target

To secure 

alternative finance 

sources, including 

the creation of new 

revenue streams 

(such as grants 

and donations), 

thereby ensuring 

cost efficiencies 

and consolidating 

resources for 

economies of scale.

Number of 

infrastructure 

projects 

sourced and 

developed from 

provincial sector 

departments, 

agencies and 

municipalities per 

annum.

5 infrastructure 

projects sourced 

and developed 

from provincial 

sector departments, 

agencies and 

municipalities 

5 infrastructure projects 

sourced and developed:

•	West	Rand	Regional 

   Airport

•	Gauteng	Green 

   Agenda

•	Sedibeng/	West	Rand 

   Waste-to-Energy 

•	Innovation	Hub:	EB	2

•	Innovation	Hub:	EB	3

Number of 

infrastructure 

projects funded

2 infrastructure 

projects funded 

through alternative 

sources of funding 

2 projects developed 

by GFA funded through 

GPG fiscal allocation for 

capital projects:

Gauteng Schools 

Programme

Archive and Libraries 

Project

No project funded 

through alternative 

sources of funding

Project 

development 

process for 

a number of 

projects was still 

in progress by 

Quarter 4

2 projects have 

been registered 

with National 

Treasury PPP:

•	Entreprise 

   Building 2

•	Kopanong 

   Precinct Project

The funding 

structure for the 

Rolfo Projects 

which based at 

the Automotive 

Supplier Park 

has been 

proposed 

and awaiting 

approval by  

AIDC 
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Reliable and credible 
basic financial 
model for developed 
projects

Develop a basic 
financial model for 
infrastructure projects 
developed by GFA

Developed a basic 
financial model for 
infrastructure projects 
developed by GFA

Reliable and credible 
Project Appraisal 
Reports

5 Project Appraisal 
Reports (PARs) of 
projects sourced for 
development 

5 Project Appraisal 
Reports (PARs) of 
developed:
•	 West Rand Logistics 

Hub
•	 ICT Smart City
•	 Archive and 

Libraries
•	 Gauteng Green 

Agenda
•	 TIH: Enterprise 

Building 2 

Comprehensive and 
credible investment 
Memorandum

Develop Annual 
Investment 
Memorandum.

Develop Annual 
Investment 
Memorandum.

Comprehensive and 
approved PPF

Project Preparation 
Facility (PPF) 
developed, approved 
and operationalized

Project Preparation 
Facility (PPF) developed 
and approved 
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SECTION 5: KEY DELIVERABLES FOR 2014/15
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OUTLOOK FOR THE COMING YEAR KEY DELIVERABLES FOR 2014/15 

In the new term the National Government has recomitted with greater emphasis on infrastructure and economic growth. 
Gauteng is no exception as it continues to experience challenges in infrastructure provisioning due to population growth 
and new household formation. As one of the largest single economies on the African continent, the infrastructure investment 
required to support economic development seems to be larger than any other province. 

The GFA working environment has experienced a number of changes over the past year. A notable structural change is that 
the GFA will soon be established as a government component in terms of the Public Service Act and the existing trading 
entity will be systematically disestablished. This structural change necessitated a review of the value proposition of GFA. 
Consequently, all operations have been streamlined and will be underpinned by robust systems, best practices, processes 
and procedures to enable the GFA to function optimally over the next term.  The revised organisation design was designed 
with the view to add value to the provincial departments and municipalities in the preparation of infrastructure projects. 
The capacitation of the GFA to supplement skills deficit in departments is thus a fundamental requirement for GFA success.

It is a key part of the GFA strategy to assist provincial departments, local authorities, government-supported private initiatives 
and related infrastructure development institutions to prepare high quality, viable projects that would be ready to solicit 
financing from public and private sources. In this regard, GFA’s advocacy to work with the regulator and other stakeholders 
on expanding current legislation to ensure more alternatives when pursuing private sector partnership is critical. In addition, 
GFA strategy intends to position GFA as a credible interface between Government and Industry to ensure continuity of 
projects regardless of changes in leadership.

The value proposition of the GFA remains to become a one stop service that provides expertise and skills to develop 
projects to a “bankable” stage. Therefore, the GFA’s priority is to focus on building its capacity and putting in place 
efficient processes and procedures for project development.  This includes providing supplement skills to the PPP unit and 
provincial departments. 

Once the projects are identified and put through the development value chain, the GFA will be provide a full bouquet 
of services such as financial modeling, financial structuring, project accounting, risk analysis, legal and other technical 
expertise. Currently the GFA provides support only up to feasibility and business case stage, the GFA will extend its services 
whereby it will become responsible from conceptual stage to implementation stage (that is; project management). To provide 
these services, the GFA will augment its capacity with skills in all specialized areas of project finance and implementation. 

The Strategic Objectives and the key deliverables of the GFA in the new financial are outline in the table below: 
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Table: Strategic Objective and Key Deliverables

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES KEY DELIVERABLE 
To provide sound strategic direction and leadership 
to the GFA through credible Strategic Plans, Annual 
Performance Plans and reliable management of GFA’s 
performance

5 Year Strategic Plan and 2015/16 Annual Performance Plan 
(APP) approved and implemented

Effective and efficient organisational performance monitoring 
in line with the Performance Information Management 
Framework

To ensure that GFA becomes a Centre of Excellence in 
strategic infrastructure financing solutions in GPG

3 year Research Agenda and research projects on innovative 
financing solutions for infrastructure projects

Functional Knowledge Management and Document 
Mnagement System 

SLAs concluded with client departments, municipalities or 
agencies

To support the GFA through effective communications, 
marketing and stakeholder relations management

Integrated Marketing Communications Strategy for GFA 
developed and implemented. This includes branding of the 
GFA.

Effective stakeholder management

To ensure good governance and a sound control 
environment through relevant finance policies, in-year 
monitoring, risk and security management

Achieve a clean audit

Ensure implementation of GFA policies, business processes, 
procedures and systems in-line with Provincial Treasury 
policies

Efficient management of GFA ICT in compliance with 
government ICT policy 

To ensure ICT governance within the GFA in line with 
the Corporate Governance of ICT Framework (CGIF)

Establish ICT governance plans and charter in compliance with 
the Corporate Governance of ICT Policy Framework  

To improve remote access to GFA’s business 
applications

Business wide remote access to GFA’s business applications

To ensure the continuity of GFA’s business in the event 
of disaster by constantly testing the credibility of 
established business continuity plans

GFA facilities managed efficiently and in compliance with 
relevant legislation, regulations and policies on facilities 
management, including effective and efficient business 
continuity plan in the event of disasterTo provide efficient management of GFA facilities in 

compliance with relevant legislation, regulations and 
policies on facilities management

To establish an efficient and developmental human 
resources management for the GFA

Develop and implement the HR Plan,  Change Management 
Strategy and capacity development 

To source and develop infrastructure projects that fit the 
strategic outlook of GFA from provincial sector  
departments, agencies and municipalities

Source and develop infrastructure projects from provincial 
sector departments, agencies and municipalities.

Ensure a well functioning Project Preparation Function

Develop infrastructure financing solutions

Develop  social and economic infrastructure projects 
through a project preparation function

To support efforts to secure alternative sources of  
funding through effective funder engagement

To create alternative financing sources, thereby  
ensuring cost efficiencies and consolidating resources 
for economies of scale

Engagement of potential funders and investors
Implement the GFA Investment Memorandum
Structure finance and reach financial close

To monitor the development of infrastructure projects 
and evaluate their impact against provincial priorities

Monitor project development and impact by generating 
quarterly and annual reports
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ENQUIRIES:
All enquiries should be directed to:
a)  Mr Lebogang Tladinyane
     Head of Strategy, M&E
     Office: 011 290-6604
     Fax: 011 290-6700
     Cell: 082 372 0635
     Email: l.tladinyane@gfa.za.com

b)   Mr Aubrey Kitime
      Head of Communications & 
      Stakeholder Relations
      Office: 011 290-6610
      Fax: 011 290-6700
      Cell: 079 527 6433
      Email: A.Kitime@gfa.za.com
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